City of Caribou, Maine Municipal Building
25 High Street

Caribou, ME 04736

_ AGENDA Telephone (207) 493-3324
Caribou Planning Board Fax (207 498-3954
Regular Meeting www.cariboumaine.org

Wednesday, November 10, 2021 at 5:30 p.m.

The meeting will be broadcast on Cable Channel 1301 and the City’s YouTube Channel.

Public Comments submitted prior to the meeting no later than 4:00 pm on Wednesday, November

II.

1.

IVv.

VI

VII.

10, 2021 will be read during the meeting. Send comments to CEO Ken Murchison at
kmurchison(@cariboumaine.org or call 493-5967.

Call Meeting to Order, Determine Quorum
Public Hearings

a. Public Hearing on proposed amendments to Sec. 13-700 (6) Campground  Pgs. 2-5
and/or Recreational Vehicle Park.

Approval of Minutes

a. Approval of Minutes of the October 14, 2021 Planning Board Meeting Pgs. 6-9
New Business

a. Tiny Homes and Accessory Dwelling Units Pgs. 10-26
Old Business

a. Continue proposed amendments to Sec 13-700 (13) Home Occupations Pgs. 27-39
and schedule Public Hearing

b. Comprehensive Plan Update, continue review. Pgs. 40-41
Staff Report

a. Dangerous and Nuisance Property Listings

b. Demolition of 37 Home Farm Road

c. Riverfront Redevelopment Committee

d. Caribou Trailer Park

e. GrowSmart Conference

Adjournment



6. Campground and/or Recreational Vehicle Park.

A campground and/or recreational vehicle (RV) park shall conform to the minimum
requirements imposed under State licensing procedures of 10-144 DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Chapter 205: RULES RELATING TO
CAMPGROUNDS and the following (in case of possible conflict. the stricter rule shall apply).
and-the-foHowing-(in-case-oF possible-contlietthe stricterrule-shatl-apply)-For the purposes of
this Section "RV" shall inelade:include travel RV, pick-up coach, motor home, camping trailer,
dependent RV, and self-contained RV~

A. General.

1.4-A campground and/or RV park shall have no less than three (3) acres in the R-2
District no less than seven (7) acres in the R-3 District. All R.V. and tents shall be
located at least 25 feet (7.6 m.) from any-park-boundary-tine-abutting-upon-a-publie street
or-highway-and-atleast15-feet-(4-5-m-Hrom-other-park-er-area-property-boundary lines,
and 100 feet (30.5 m.) from the normal high water mark of a great pond classified GPA
or ariver flowing to a great pond classified GPA, and 75 feet (22.9 m.) from the normal
high-water line of other water bodies, tributary streams, or the upland edge of a wetland
subject to the 250-foot (76.2 m.) Shoreland Zoning requirements and 200 feet from any
residence, exclusive of the residence belonging to the owner.

2.2-Sites in the R-2 district shall be laid out and screened in such a manner that none are
within view from public roads or existing residence. Any combination of evergreen
planting, landscaped earthen berms, or solid fencing may be used to achieve this
screening standards, when sites would otherwise be visible from the locations described
above. No screening required in the R-3 District.

3.-3-No trailers or mobile homes, other than RVs, shall be permitted within any
campground and/or RV park temporarlly or otherwise. No-RVs-shatl-be-stored-or
exhibited-Hors: ancdor RV park-Permanent-or-long—term
elmmMMWf%ﬁMEMmMé

4.Bunkhouses that are part of a licensed campground or recreational camp are not
considered lodging places. For further information regarding Lodging Places seel(0-144
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES BUREAU OF HEALTH DIVISION OF
HEALTH ENGINEERING Chapter 206 RULES RELATING TO LODGING
ESTABLISHMENTS.

5.4-Tent sites and RV sites shall be laid out so that the density of each developed acre of
land shall not exceed the standards below (in terms of sites per acre of land, excluding
circulation roads). Land supporting wetland vegetation, and land below the normal high-
water line of a water body shall not be included in calculating land area per site.

Non-Shoreland Shoreland Areas
-Tent Sites 14 per acre 8 per acre
-RV and Travel Trailer Sites 11 per acre 7 per acre

B. Minimum lot sizes.:



1. Sites shall contain a minimum of 1000 square feet (92-9 sq. m.) (not including roads and
streets) for each R.V. and tent site, except that in areas subject to the 250-foot (76.2 m.)
mandatory Shoreland Zoning Act, there shall be a minimum of 5,000 square feet (464.5 sq. m.)
of suitable land, (not including roads and streets,) for each site-5. The minimum frontage of a tent
site or RV site along any shoreline of a waterbody shall be 50 feet.

62. Use of tent sites or RV sites located within a-ReseureeProtectionsDistrict-or-within-the
100-year floodplain shall be prohibited between March 1 and May 31 and during seasonal
flooding events.

73. Recreational Vehicles located within Zones A1-30, as indicated on the National Flood
Insurance Program Rate Maps (FIRM) shall either:

a. a-Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days.

b. b-Be fully licensed and ready for highway use. A recreational vehicle is ready for
highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick
disconnect type utilities and security devices and has no permanently attached additions; or

¢. _e—Meet the permit requirements of elevation and anchoring requirements for
“manufactured home” in Flood Hazard Area regulations 13-606. H. a & b.

BC. Parking and Circulation.

1. A minimum of three hundred (300) square feet of off-street parking plus maneuvering space
shall be provided or each tent site or RV site. RVs shall be parked in spaces so that:
a. There shall be a minimum of 50 feet between vehicles; and
b. There shall be a minimum of 75 feet between all RVs and tents, and all public rights-of-
way located inside the boundaries of the campground.
2. Roads and streets: All parking areas shall be provided with safe and convenient vehicular
access from
abutting public streets or roads to each R.V. site. Alignment and gradient shall be properly
adapted to topography.
a. Surfacing and maintenance: Surfacing and maintenance shall provide a smooth, hard
and dense surface which shall be well drained.
b. Access to sites: Access to R.V. sites shall be designed to minimize congestion and
hazards at the entrance or exit and allow free movement of traffic on adjacent streets.

3. Standards for the construction of roads and/or driveways and drainage systems, culverts
and other related features applicable in the Shoreland Zone can be found in Sec. 13-500
Shoreland Zoning Ordinance. 15. Land Use Standards H. Roads and Driveways.

C. Health and Safety.

L—M%@ﬂ[—%m—l%&mc}”%a&memled—“ rth-a-prente-table-and-trashreceptaete—the
Park-manasementshatbdispos ' ‘om-sitd-contatners by transporting the rebase i u
closed-truck-or-in-enelosed-contatners-or-baps-toan-approved-disposal aresatleast onee-every
Hreze S




2. A campground and/or RV park shall provide water and sewerage disposal systems, sanitary
facilities, and convenience facilities in accordance with the regulations of 10-144
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES A-EMR-Chapter 205 RULES RELATING TO
CAMPGROUNDS and the Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules 144A CMR 241"State
of Maine Subsurface-Wastewater Disposal-Rules”. All RV sites shall be equipped with water and
sewage hook-ups and connected to approved distribution or disposal systems.

service-butldings—A-suitable-ingress-and-egress-shatb-be-provided-so-that-the-campground-or

RV-park-may-bereadily-serviced-n-emergeney-situations—24-houremergeney-contmunication

service{e-g—telephones)-shat-berequired:

D. Planning and Review.

1. Roads, parking, sites, and required facilities shall be planned in accordance with the basic
principles outlined below and shall be shown on the proposed plan which is submitted for
review and approval.

a. A logical sequence of entry and circulation should be created: entrance,
administration, storage, parking, sites, toilets, laundry, playing fields, or shoreline.

b. Sites should be clustered in groups according to intensity of use (low density,
medium density, etc.) and also related to common support service areas (laundries, play
areas, ctc.) serving a number of site clusters. The purpose is to minimize road length,
increase accessibility, and preserve open space.

c. Footpaths and roads should follow "desired lines" of pedestrian and vehicular
movement between sites an all jointly used facilities. Parking areas may be grassed,
reinforced with open concrete blocks.

d. Access roads shall be laid out as loops to the greatest extent practicable, although
"cul-de-sacs" or "dead ends" may be allowed to serve up to twenty (20) campsites.

2. BA-est management practices shall be employed for soil erosion and sedimentation control
plan-and a Storm Water Runoff Plan shall be submitted. In addition to data on soils, slopes, and
drainage, a vegetation map showing the following items may be required:

a. The major types of vegetation should be identified and described (as to age, height,
openness or density, and pattern, either natural or reforested).

b. New plantings tolerant to existing and proposed site conditions, and blending
compatible with existing natural vegetation should be selected to provide screening and
shelter.—to-tolerate-existing-and-propesed-site conditions—and-blending compatible-with
existing naturabvesetation,

c. All vegetative clearing should avoid creating straight line edges between open land
and surviving stands.

d. Areas of activity and/or traffic should be sited to avoid wildlife areas (such as
thickets for birds and small mammals, or deer yards and trails).




Historical Note: Section 13-700 §6 as amended June 14, 2021.



City of Caribou, Maine
ty f ’ Municipal Building

25 High Street

Caribou, ME 04736
Telephone (207) 493-3324
Fax (207 498-3954
www.cariboumaine.org

Caribou Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Thursday, October 14, 2021 @ 5:30 pm
City Council Chambers

Members in Attendance: Dan Bagley, Frank McElwain, Eric Hitchcock and Dave Corriveau
Members Absent: Steve Wentworth, Amanda Jandreau and Christine Solman

Others in Attendance: Ken Murchison — CEO/Zoning Administrator; Denise Lausier — Executive Assistant
to City Manager

Councilor Liaison — Tom Ayer, Absent

L. Call Meeting to Order, Determine Quorum — Chairman Dan Bagley called the meeting to order at
5:39 pm., a quorum was present.

II. Public Hearings
a. Public Hearing on a Day Care Permit Application by Wayne and Lisha Wasson at 5 Lower
Washington Street, Tax Map 27, Lot 10 — Chairman Bagley called the Public Hearing to order at

5:40 pm. Just purchased the property down on 5 Lower Washington Street.

CEO Murchison gave the Board members his staff review. Mr. Murchison explained that Ms.
Wasson is not comfortable speaking in public so she decided to not attend the hearing.

Chairman Bagley questioned if it is a home occupation or daycare center. CEO Murchison stated
6-8 children in a home. Chairman Bagley commented that they need to look at developing a
different application for home daycares. The Board will review this as a home occupation.

CEO Murchison explained that the applicant just bought this home on Lower Washington. They
were a licensed daycare operator in Limestone and didn’t realize they needed to be licensed for
Caribou. The application was submitted in September, but not ready for the September meeting.

Dave Corriveau commented that the neighbor has a home based daycare and that the application
would be almost identical to the neighbors.

Eric Hitchcock questioned the licensing with the State. Chairman Bagley stated that the State has
licensed them already.

Chairman Bagley stated that the Fire Marshal report has been done and the fire rated door needs to
be put in. This is the only item from the Fire Marshal report that is pending.

Betty Michaud from Lower Lyndon Street told the Board that this street runs down into her
driveway. Ms. Michaud has concerns with traffic back to back on that corner. There is no place to



I11.

park, both sides of the road. Kids were running in the street, concerned for their safety. With
winter coming, the streets are smaller with the snow. People park in the street, there is no driveway
for dropping off children. With buses coming in and out and all the kids, she is concerned for the
safety of the children.

Dave Corriveau asked if there are any vacant lots in that area. CEO Murchison said that there is a
City owned lot right there. Mr. Corriveau mentioned that perhaps the two daycares could purchase
that lot for parking. Mr. Corriveau said they will make an attempt to address that concern.

Fileen Guerrelle, her neighbor also has coucerus of the same as Ms. Michaud.

Mr. Corriveau asked if the City could put up no parking signs, so people would have to drive in.
CEO Murchison said they could perhaps put up children signs.

Chairman Bagley questioned how much of the building are they using because there is a 50%
limitation on the use. CEO Murchison answered that they are using only the first floor, not the
second floor and the play area is fenced off.

CEO Murchison commented that there are no signs and no added exterior lighting.
The Public Hearing was closed at 5:55 pm.

Chairman Bagley stated that it’s a complete application. A daycare is allowed in the R-2 zone, all
criteria was met except circulation/loading area. Chairman Bagley commented he would prefer
they use their driveway. CEO Murchison said they have only two parking spots.

Frank McElwain questioned if the police have the current traffic issues or any insights. Dave
Corriveau commented that signage would go a long way being there are many kids on the street.

CEO Murchison stated that there is an established chain link fence, they have a fenced in play area.
Board reviewed the application criteria.

Discussion on the percentage of the home being used, only 50% can be used. Chairman Bagley
stated that given the approximate measurements, he doesn’t think they should make an issue out of
54% of the home being used. No objections from the Board.

Dave Corriveau moved to accept the application as submitted; seconded by Frank McElwain

Roll Call Vote.
Frank McElwain — yes; Dave Corriveau — yes; Eric Hitchcock — yes; Dan Bagley — yes.
Motion carried with all in favor.

Approval of Minutes —

a. Approval of Minutes of the August 26, 2021, Planning Beard Special Meeting

b. Approval of Minutes of the September 9, 2021, Planning Board Meeting

¢. Approval of Minutes of the September 23, 2021, Planning Board Work Session Meeting

Eric Hitchcock moved to approve all three sets of minutes as written; seconded by Frank
McElwain.

Roll Call Vote.
Frank McElwain — yes; Dave Corriveau — yes; Eric Hitchcock — yes; Dan Bagley — yes.
Motion carried with all in favor.



IV.  New Business —

a. Continue proposed amendments to Sec. 13-700 (6) Campground and/or Recreational
Vehicle Park and schedule Public Hearing. — The Board reviewed the changes they had
worked on at their last work session. Chairman Bagley believes the community would be
pleased with the changes to get the standards closer to the State minimums. The Public Hearing
will be at the next regular meeting. The next meeting date is on a holiday, Veterans Day,
November 11", The Board consensus was to meet on Wednesday, November 10" at 5:30 pm.

b. Continue proposed amendments to Sec 13-700 (13) Home Occupations and schedule
Public Hearing. — The Board reviewed the changes they had worked on prior.

Discussion on daycare standards. Eric Hitchcock would like to stay with DHHS standards for
employees. CEO Murchison can reach out to the State on daycare standards to get verbiage.

Eric Hitchcock had concerns with the number of children allowed and wants to make sure
those numbers haven’t been changed at the State level.

Board consensus was to strike item B4 on maximum of 24 vehicular stops per day because
there is no way to monitor it.

CEO Murchison will reach out for State standards to compare.

Dave Corriveau recommended striking child group activities because there is no way to
monitor that. CEO Murchison stated that would be more of a commercial operation. Board will

consider.

Eric Hitchcock asked if there was any way to get a comprehensive list of activities that may be
in a home that is monitored by DHHS and what they regulate. Daycares, hair salons, etc. CEO
Murchison will work on this.

Chairman Bagley wanted to revisit that on the land use table, identify a column with a
checkmark or asterisk so they know if it is permissible as a home occupation and add verbiage
at the beginning of the ordinance. Board discussion.

V. Old Business -
a. Continue Final Plan Review for Troy Haney for the Kacie’s Place Campground on 154

Limestone Street Tax Map 38, Lots 105, 106 and 108. Review of Storm Water Plan. —
The Board reviewed the storm water plan and their consensus was that it is a good plan and it
is in alignment with best practices. The Board consensus is they are satisfied with the plan.

VL.  Goals and Priorities -
a. Schedule working session for Comprehensive Plan Update — CEO Murchison stated that a

lot of work has been done so far, will look at proposed land use that is still pending and
proposed zoning, then it goes to NMDC to review. Chairman Bagley proposed a first work
session as an organizational meeting to go through and come up with a plan. Chairman Bagley
envisions a series of work sessions and stated there are several areas in the plan that others
have contributed. The Board decided to meet in two weeks for a work session, October 28" @

5:30 pm.

VIL. Staff Report — CEO Ken Murchison
a. Dangerous and Nuisance Property Listings — The City Council requested a list. The top five
and alternate are dangerous buildings. The last two and alternate are nuisance properties. 2/3 of
properties could be tax acquired. 71 dangerous buildings.



b. Demolition of 37 Home Farm Road — By State statute this is a dangerous building, can demo
and bill the homeowner. The owner is in California.

¢. Riverfront Redevelopment Committee — Contact list is up to fifteen, have had great
responses. The City Council has made their appointments. The first official committee meeting
is October 16™,

d. Caribou Trailer Park — On a tight timeline for park closure, November 17" is the last day.
Several trailers are still there. Working with some who want to stay and use squatters rights.
City may have to dispose of 6-8 trailers at the end. Council Trailer Park Committee will meet
on Monday. For the property that is left, the City will need to work with the aviation people.
This property could have more hangar space on it or a solar array.

VIII. Adjournment — Frank McElwain moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:17 pm; seconded by Dave

Corriveau.

Roll Call Vote.
Frank McElwain — yes; Dave Corriveau — yes; Eric Hitchcock — yes; Dan Bagley — yes.
Motion carried with all in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,

Amanda Jandreau
Planning Board Secretary

AJ/dl



114121, 3:16

SP0683
LD 1981

https://legislat

PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'

Session - 129th Maine Legislature LR 2949

C "A", Filing Number S-429, Sponsored by

Amend the bill by striking out the title and substituting the following:
‘An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes’
Amend the bill by striking out everything after the title and inserting the following:

‘Emergency preamble. Whereas, acts and resolves of the Legislature do not
become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, the Secretary of State, industry and individuals have an urgent need to clarify
the regulatory landscape so that tiny homes can be registered and titled and the industry may
resume production; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the
meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:
Sec. 1. 29-A MRSA §101, sub-§80-C is enacted to read:

80-C. Tiny home. 'Tiny home" means a living_space permanently constructed on a
frame or chassis and designed for use as permanent living quarters that:

A. Complies with American National Standards Institute standard A 119.5 on plumbing,
propane, fire and life safety and construction or National Fire Protection Association
standard 1192 on plumbing, propane and fire and life safety for recreational vehicles;

— e = e e e

B. Does not exceed 400 square feet in size;

C. Does not exceed any dimension allowed for operation on a public way under this Title;
d

D. Is a vehicle without motive power.

"Tiny home" does not include a trailer, semitrailer, camp trailer, recreational vehicle or
manufactured housing,

=

Sec. 2. 29-A MRSA §501, sub-§7, as amended by PL 2011, c. 556, §4, is further
amended to read:

7. Temporary registration permit. The Secretary of State may issue a temporary
registration permit for the purpose of moving certain vehicles otherwise required to be
registered or for a tiny home as follows.

A. A temporary registration permit is fer-eme-trip-enty limited in use for transportation of a

vehicle after sale, transportation necessary for service or repairs of a vehicle, occasional
seasonal relocation of a vehicle or transportation necessary,_for the relocation of a tiny
home:

ure.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp

Item 2

10

1/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes’
(1) Between the points of origin and destination and intermediate points, as set forth
in the permit; or

(2) From the point of origin to the destination and back to the point of origin,

including any intermediate points, as set forth in the permit.

B. A temporary registration permit is for the transit ot the vehicle only. 'The vehicle may
not be used for the transportation of passengers or property, for compensation or
otherwise, unless specifically authorized on the temporary registration permit. If the
vehicle is a chartered bus that is not covered by a reciprocity agreement with the state or
country of registration, the Secretary of State may authorize transportation of passengers.

C. The Secretary of State may not issue a temporary registration permit that is valid for
longer than 10 days from the effective date of the registration.

D. The fee for a temporary registration permit issued under paragraph A, subparagraph (1)
is $12. The fee for a temporary registration permit issued under paragraph A,
subparagraph (2) is $25.

E. The temporary registration permit must be carried in the vehicle at all times.

F. A person who operates or moves a vehicle outside the routes specified in the temporary
registration permit commits a traffic infraction and may not be fined less than $25 nor
more than $200.

G. The Secretary of State may issue unassigned temporary registration permits to a vehicle
auction business licensed under section 1051 to allow the movement of a vehicle sold to a
dealer.

Sec. 3. 29-A MRSA §603, sub-§1-A is enacted to read:

1-A. Fee of $100. A fee of $100 must be paid to the Secretary of State for the
following:

A. A certificate of title for a tiny home; or

B. A certificate of title for manufactured housing,

Sec. 4. 29-A MRSA §651, sub-§7 is enacted to read:

7. Tiny homes. The Secretary of State shall issue certificates of title for new tiny

homes beginning with model year 2020. The Secretary of State shall issue a certificate of title
for a used tiny home of any model year that was previously issued a State of Maine certificate

of title. A certificate of title issued pursuant to this subsection remains in effect unless cancelled

pursuant to section 669.

Sec. 5. 29-A MRSA §652, sub-§9-A is enacted to read:

9-A. Tiny homes. A tiny home that is:
A. Sold before January 1, 2020; or
B. Model year 2019 or older;

Sec. 6. 29-A MRSA §654, sub-§6 is enacted to read:

6. Tiny homes. The following provisions govern application for a certificate of title
for a tiny home.

[

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 2/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'

A. An application for a tiny home must be submitted to the Secretary of State by the retail

seller. If the tiny home is purchased new out of state, the application must be submitted by,
the lien holder or the owner. The application must be accompanied by the manufacturer's
certificate of origin.

B. An application for a used tiny home must be submitted by the retail seller. In the
absence of a retail seller located in this State, the application must be submitted by, the

lienholder. In the absence of a retail seller and a lienholder, the application must be

submitted by the owner. The application must be accompanied by any previous State of

Maine certificate of title.

Sec. 7. 29-A MRSA §667, sub-§7, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 678, §9 and affected
by §13, is amended to read:

7. Exemption. Certificates of title issued for manufactured housing and tiny homes are
exempt from this section.

Sec. 8. 29-A MRSA §669, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 678, §10 and affected by §13, is
amended to read:

§ 669. Cancellation of certificate of title to manufactured housing and tiny
homes

1. Real property transactions. This section governs cancellation of a certificate of
title to manufactured housing or a tiny home by the owner of the manufactured housing or tiny
home when the manufactured housing or tiny home becomes affixed to real property owned by
the owner of the manufactured housing or tiny home.

2. Cancellation. A certificate of title to manufactured housing or a tiny home may be
cancelled by the Secretary of State if the owner of the real property records the following
documents in the registry of deeds for the county in which the real property is located:

A. The original certificate of title to the manufactured housing or tiny home;

B. A description of the manufactured housing or tiny home, including model year, make,
width, length and identification number, and a statement by any recorded lienholder on the
certificate of title that the security interest has been released or that such security interest
will be released upon cancellation of the certificate of title as set forth in this section;

C. The legal description of the real property; and

D. A sworn statement by the owner of the real propetrty, as shown on the real property
deed, that the owner of the real property is the owner of the manufactured housing or tiny,
home and that the manufactured housing or tiny home is permanently affixed to the real
property in accordance with state law.

3. Recording. The register of deeds, upon receipt of the documents set forth in
subsection 2, shall record the documents.

4. Request for cancellation. An owner of manufactured housing or a tiny home shall
file a written request with the Secretary of State for cancellation of the certificate of title to the
manufactured housing or tiny home after completion of the requirements in subsections 2 and 3
and by returning the recorded certificate of title. The Secretary of State shall cancel the
certificate of title upon receipt of the written request from the owner of the manufactured
housing or tiny home requesting cancellation of the certificate of title, accompanied by the 12

https://legislature.maine.govi/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 3/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, ‘An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'
certificate of title and documents listed in subsection 2 that have been recorded pursuant to
subsection 3. Upon cancellation of the certificate of title, the Secretary of State shall issue a
document certifying that the certificate of title has been cancelled.

5. Liens. For purposes of perfection, realization and foreclosure of security interests, if a
certificate of title has been cancelled pursuant to this section, a separate security interest in the
manufactured housing ot tiny home does not exist, and the manufactured housing or tiny home
may be secured only as part of the real property through a mortgage under Title 33.

6. Applicability. This section applies to manufactured housing or tiny homes required
to be titled under section 651 and to any person who voluntarily elects to cancel a certificate of
title to manufactured housing or a tiny home pursuant to this section.

7. Taxation not affected. Nothing in this section may be construed to affect the
taxation of manufactured housing or tiny homes.

8. No change to common law. Nothing in this section may be construed to modify
or change existing common law.

Sec. 9. 29-A MRSA §705, sub-§5, as enacted by PL 2009, c. 435, §13, is amended
to read:

5. Manufactured housing or tiny home. This subsection governs satisfaction of a
security interest in manufactured housing or a tiny home.

A. Upon satisfaction of a security interest in manufactured housing or a tiny home, the
lienholder whose security interest is satisfied shall execute, within 60 days, a release in the
form the Secretary of State prescribes and mail or deliver the release to the owner or any
person who delivers to the lienholder an authorization from the owner to receive that
release. The lienholder shall also within 60 days of satisfaction of its security interest
notify the Secretary of State in the form the Secretary of State prescribes that the lien has
been satisfied.

B. The owner and subordinate lienholder, if any, may each recover $1,000 from a
lienholder who fails to release the security interest and notify the Secretary of State that
the lien has been satisfied within the 60-day time period under paragraph A.

Sec. 10. 29-A MRSA §708, as amended by PL 2013, ¢. 125, §4, is further amended
to read:

§ 708. Manufactured housing or tiny home

This subchapter applies to perfection of security interests in manufactured housing or a
tiny home that is not permanently affixed to real property that is owned by the owner of the
manufactured housing or tiny home.

Sec. 11. 29-A MRSA §954, sub-§6, as enacted by PL 2019, ¢. 397, §15, is

amended to read:

6. Irailer transit plate. A business that delivers or services mobile homes or tiny
homes, leases or transports storage trailers or transports light trailers, modular homes or frames
for transporting modular homes may apply for a trailer transit license and plate. The transit
plate may not be loaned, used in place of registration plates on another vehicle, used for
personal reasons or used on the towing vehicle. Issuance of a trailer transit license and plate

12

https://legislature. maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 4/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'
does not exempt the holder from compliance with any state law or municipal ordinance
governing the movement of mobile homes, tiny_homes, storage trailers, modular homes or
frames for transporting modular homes or light trailers over the highways of this State and does
not exempt the holder from required permits or certificates prior to moving the vehicles. Trailer
transit plates issued pursuant to this subsection may be used only subject to the following
conditions.

A. A storage trailer must be empty during transportation.

B. A light trailer may be transported with a load appropriate for the light trailer, as long as
the load is owned by or in the custody of the transporting business.

C. A light trailer may be transported with a trailer transit plate only if the business owner
or an employee of the business accompanies the vehicle transporting the light trailer.

Fees for trailer transit licenses and plates are established in section 852. Trailer transit licenses
are exempt from section 951, subsection 6.

For purposes of this subsection, "business" means a corporation, firm, partnership, joint
venture, sole proprietorship or other commercial entity. For the purposes of this subsection,
"modular home" has the same meaning as in Title 30-A, section 4358, subsection 1, paragraph
A, subparagraph (2).

A person who violates this subsection commits a traffic infraction.

Sec. 12. 29-A MRSA §1902, sub-§4, as amended by PL 1999, c. 183, §5, is further

amended to read:

4. Trucks; specific requirements. Special mobile equipment or a truck, truck
tractor, tiny home, trailer or semitrailer must be equipped with adequate brakes acting on all
wheels of all axles, except that the following need not meet this requirement:

A. A trailer or semitrailer not exceeding a gross weight of 3,000 pounds;
B. A vehicle towed by use of a wrecker;

C. A vehicle meeting braking requirements of the motor carrier safety regulations of the
United States Department of Transportation;

D. A semitrailer with a gross weight of semitrailer and load not to exceed 12,000 pounds,
designed and used exclusively:

(1) For the dispensing of cable from attached reels, commonly called a reel trailer; or

(2) To support the end of poles while being transported, commonly called a pole
dolly; and
F. A dolly axle, so-called, on a farm truck transporting agricultural products and supplies.

A dolly axle may not be considered in determining the gross weight or axle limits
permitted on the vehicle.

A 2-axle or 3-axle farm truck equipped with a dolly axle is considered a 2-axle or 3-axle
vehicle.

Sec. 13. 29-A MRSA §1905, sub-§1, as amended by PL 2005, c. 314, §10, is
further amended to read:

1. Requirement. Except as provided in subsection 3, a motor vehicle with 3 or more
wheels or a tiny home, trailer or semitrailer must have on the rear 2 lights, one on each side of /|
/

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bilts/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 5/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'
the axis, each capable of displaying a red light visible for a distance of at least 100 feet behind
the vehicle.

Sec. 14. 29-A MRSA §1905-A, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 1995, c. 584, Pt. A, §2,

is amended to read:

1. Requirement. Except as provided in subsection 3, a motor vehicle, tiny home,
trailer or semitrailer must be equipped with electric flashing turn signal lamps. A motor vehicle
must emit white or amber light from the turn signals to the front of the vehicle and a motor
vehicle, trailer or semitrailer must emit amber or red light from the turn signals to the rear of
the vehicle.

Sec. 15. 29-A MRSA §1905-B, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 2015, c. 176, §2, is

amended to read:

1. Requirement. All factory-installed brake lights or equivalent replaccments on a
motor vehicle, tiny home, trailer or semitrailer must be present and operating properly and must
emit a steady red light when a slight pressure is placed on the brake pedal, and the light emitted
must be visible for a distance of at least 100 feet behind the vehicle. For purposes of this
section, "steady red light" means a red light that is either immediately constant and not
pulsating or that pulsates for a short period and then becomes constant.

Sec. 16. 29-A MRSA §1917, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2013, c. 30, §1, is further

amended to read:

2. Safe tires required. A motor vehicle or tiny home may not be operated on a public
way unless it is equipped with tires in safe operating condition. A tire mounted on a motor
vehicle or tiny home is not considered to be in safe operating condition unless it meets the
visual and tread depth requirements set forth in subsections 3 and 4 and the vehicle is in
compliance with the frame height requirements provided in section 1920.

Sec. 17. 29-A MRSA §2061, sub-§1, as amended by PL 2015, c. 176, §4, is further
amended to read:

1. Prohibition. A person commits a traffic infraction if that person occupies a camp
trailer, mobile home, tiny home, semitrailer or trailer while it is being moved on a public way.

Sec. 18. 29-A MRSA §2385, sub-§4, as amended by PL 1999, c. 468, §4, is further

amended to read:

4. Trailers and tiny homes. A trailer , tiny home or semitrailer that is wider than the
vehicle towing it must be equipped with reflective material or a lamp on each front corner that
is visible to oncoming traffic.

Sec. 19. 29-A MRSA §2389, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 1993, c. 683, Pt. A, §2 and
affected by Pt. B, §5, is amended to read:

1. Limitation on drawn trailers and tiny homes. Only one tiny home, trailer or
semitrailer may be drawn by a motor vehicle, except that a combination of a truck tractor,
semitrailer and full trailer may be operated on the Interstate Highway System and those
qualifying federal aid primary system highways designated by the Secretary of the United
States Department of Transportation, pursuant to the United States Surface Transportation

15

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 6/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, ‘An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'

Assistance Act of 1982, Public Law 97-424, Section 411. "Driveaway" and "towaway"
operations, as defined by the Secretary of State, may include a combination of saddlemount
vehicles not to exceed 3 units in contact with the road.

Sec. 20. 29-A MRSA §2390, sub-§1, as amended by PL 2017, c. 165, §10 and c.
229, §34, is further amended by amending the first paragraph to read:

1. Jrucks Tiny homes, trucks, trailers and recreational vehicles. The
following maximum length limits apply to tiny_homes, trucks, trailers and recreational vehicles
and include permanent or temporary structural parts of the vehicle and load, but do not include
refrigeration units or other nonload-carrying appurtenances permitted by federal regulation.

A. A vehicle may not exceed 45 feet, except as provided in this section.

B. The maximum overall length of a combination of vehicles may not exceed 65 feet
unless otherwise permitted by law.

C. A trailer or semitrailer may be greater than 45 feet but not more than 48 feet in
structural length only if the distance between the center of the rearmost axle of the truck
tractor and the center of the rearmost axle of the trailer or semitrailer does not exceed 38
feet.

The overall length of the combination of truck tractor and trailer or semitrailer in this
paragraph may not exceed 69 feet, including all structural parts of the vehicle, permanent
or temporary, and any load carried on or in the vehicle, including any rear overhang.

The interaxle distance and overall combination vehicle length maximum limits required by
this paragraph do not apply on the Interstate Highway System and those qualifying federal
aid primary system highways designated by the Secretary of the United States Department
of Transportation, pursuant to the United States Surface Transportation Assistance Act of
1982, Public Law 97-424, Section 411.

D. The load on a combination vehicle transporting tree-length logs exclusively may extend
rearward beyond the body of the vehicle by no more than 8 1/2 feet, as long as no more
than 25% of the length of the logs extends beyond the body and the total length of the
vehicle and load does not exceed 74 feet.

E. A combination of truck tractor and full trailer or semitrailer may be operated on the
Interstate Highway System and those qualifying federal aid primary system highways
designated by the Secretary of the United States Department of Transportation, pursuant to
the United States Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, Public Law 97-424,
Section 411, with an overall length in excess of 65 feet, if the trailer or semitrailer length
does not exceed 48 feet.

F. A combination of truck tractor, semitrailer and full trailer, or a combination of truck
tractor and 2 semitrailers, may be operated on the Interstate Highway System and those
qualifying federal aid primary system highways designated by the Secretary of the United
States Department of Transportation, pursuant to the United States Surface Transportation
Assistance Act of 1982, Public Law 97-424, Section 411, with an overall length in excess
. of 65 feet, if no semitrailer or trailer length exceeds 28.5 feet. This vehicle combination
may also operate on other highways designated by the Commissioner of Transportation.

G. A stinger-steered autotransporter may be operated on the Interstate Highway System
and those qualifying federal aid primary system highways designated by the Secretary of
the United States Department of Transportation, pursuant to the United States Surface
Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, Public Law 97-424, Section 411, with an overall
length not to exceed 80 feet.

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp

ILp

719



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes'
H. A combination vehicle designed for and transporting automobiles may be operated with
an additional front overhang of not more than 4 feet and rear overhang of not more than 6
feet.

I. Drive-away saddlemount vehicle transporter combinations with an overall length not
exceeding 97 feet may be operated on the Interstate Highway System and those qualifying
federal aid primary system highways designated by the Secretary of the United States
Department of Transportation pursuant to the United States Surface Transportation
Assistance Act of 1982, Public Law 97-424, Section 411.

J. Notwithstanding any other provision of this subsection, a single semitrailer whose total
structural length exceeds 48 feet but does not exceed 53 feet may be operated in
combination with a truck tractor on a highway network if the following conditions are
met.

(1) The wheelbase of the semitrailer, measured as the distance from the kingpin to the
center of the rearmost axle of the semitrailer, may not exceed 43 feet.

(2) The kingpin setback of the semitrailer, measured as the distance from the kingpin
to the front of the semitrailer, may not exceed 3 1/2 feet in length.

(3) The rear overhang of the semitrailer, measured as the distance from the center of
the rear tandem axles of the semitrailer to the rear of the semitrailer, may not exceed
35% of the wheelbase of the semitrailer.

(4) The semitrailer must be equipped with a rear underride guard that is of sufficient
strength to prevent a motor vehicle from penetrating underneath the semitrailer,
extends across the rear of the semitrailer to within an average distance of 4 inches of
the lateral extremities of the semitrailer, exclusive of safety bumper appurtenances,
and is placed at a height not exceeding 22 inches from the surface of the ground as
measured when the semitrailer is empty and is on a level surface.

(5) The semitrailer must be equipped with vehicle lights that comply with or exceed
federal standards and reflective material approved by the Commissioner of
Transportation that must be located on the semitrailer in a manner prescribed by the
commissioner. The semitrailer must display a conspicuous warning on the rear of the
semitrailer indicating that the vehicle combination has a wide turning radius.

(8) Except as provided in subparagraph (10), the overall length of the truck tractor
and semitrailer combination of vehicles traveling beyond the national network may
not exceed 74 feet, including all structural parts of the vehicle, permanent or
temporary, and any load carried on or in the vehicle. For the purposes of this
subparagraph, "national network" means those highways in the State identified under
23 Code of Federal Regulations, Appendix A to Part 658.

(9) Notwithstanding section 2380, the width of the semitrailer must be 102 inches,
except that the width of the rear safety bumper and appurtenances to the safety
bumper may not exceed 103 inches and except that the width of a flatbed or lowboy
semitrailer, measured as the distance between the outer surface edges of the
semitrailer's tires, must be at least 96 inches but no more than 102 inches.

(10) For vehicles whose overall length exceeds 74 feet, including all structural parts
of the vehicle, permanent or temporary, and any load carried on or in the vehicle,
access is permitted to service facilities or terminals within one mile of the national
network. For purposes of this subparagraph, "national network" means those
highways in the State identified under 23 Code of Federal Regulations, Appendix A

to Part 658.
11

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 8/9



11/4/21, 3:16 PM SP0683, LD 1981, item 2, ‘An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes’
(12) This vehicle combination may not transport cargo that has been prohibited for
this vehicle combination by the Commissioner of Transportation.

(13) This paragraph does not apply to a trailer or semitrailer when transporting or
returning empty from transporting a nondivisible load or object under the provisions
of an overlimit permit granted by section 2382.

Nothing in this paragraph limits the authority of the department under Title 23, section 52
to adopt rules prohibiting or limiting access by semitrailers or other vehicles to a highway
or portion of a highway or other segment of the transportation infrastructure in order to

ensure public safety.

K. A tow-away transporter combination may be operated with an overall length not
exceeding 82 feet on the interstate highway system and those qualifying federal aid
primary system highways designated by the Secretary of the United States Department of
Transportation pursuant to the federal Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act, Public

Law 114-94, Section 5523 (2016).

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation
takes effect when approved.’

SUMMARY

This amendment replaces the bill, which is a concept draft, and changes the title. The
amendment also does the following.
1. It defines "tiny home."

2. It amends the use of temporary registration permit provisions to allow transportation of
a vehicle after sale, transportation necessary for service or repairs of a vehicle, occasional
seasonal relocation of a vehicle or transportation necessary for the relocation of a tiny home.

3. It provides that a temporary registration permit may not be issued for a vehicle that is
otherwise subject to registration.

4. It establishes a $100 fee for the certificate of title of a tiny home or manufactured
housing.

5. It provides a process to apply for, issue and cancel certificates of title for tiny homes.

6. It requires that tiny homes be equipped with safe tires and meet the equipment
requirements applicable to trailers.

7. It adds an emergency preamble and clause.

Office of Legislative Information voice: (207) 287-1692
100 State House Station fax: (207) 287-1580
Augusta, ME 04333 tty: (207) 287-6826
Word Viewer for Windows Disclaimer

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_1 29th/billtexts/SP068302.asp 9/9



11/4/21, 3:44 PM HP0725, LD 970, item 1, An Act To Encourage Policies Regarding Accessory Dwelling Units under Local Comprehensive Plans a...

HPO725 Session - 129th Maine Legislature LR 522

An Act To Encourage Policies Regarding Accessory Dwelling Units
under Local Comprehensive Plans and Zoning Requirements

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:
Sec. 1. 30-A MRSA §4301, sub-§1-B is enacted to read:

1-B. Accessory dwelling unit. "Accessory dwelling unit" means a dwelling unit
located within a detached single-family dwelling unit.

Sec. 2. 30-A MRSA §4312, sub-§3, §J, as amended by PL 2015, c. 349, §1, is
further amended to read;

J. To promote and protect the availability of outdoor recreation opportunities for all Maine
citizens, including access to surface waters; and

Sec. 3. 30-A MRSA §4312, sub-§3, K, as enacted by PL 2015, c. 349, §2, is

amended to read;

K. To encourage municipalities to develop policies that assess community needs and
environmental effects of municipal regulations, lessen the effect of excessive parking
requirements for buildings in downtowns and on main streets and provide for alternative
approaches for compliance relating to the reuse of upper floors of buildings in downtowns
and on main streets - ;_and

Sec. 4. 30-A MRSA §4312, sub-§3, 9L is enacted to read:

L. To encourage municipalities to develop policies that provide for accessory dwelling
units.

Sec. 5. 30-A MRSA §4326, sub-§1, §H, as amended by PL 2015, c. 349, §3, is
further amended to read:

H. Residential housing stock, including affordable housing, and policies that assess
community needs and environmental effects of municipal regulations, lessen the effect of
excessive parking requirements for buildings in downtowns and on main streets and
provide for alternative approaches for compliance relating to the reuse of upper floors of
buildings in downtowns and on main streets and policies that provide for accessory
dwelling units;

Sec. 6. 30-A MRSA §4326, sub-§3-A, €G, as amended by PL 2015, c. 349, §4, is

further amended to read:

G. Ensure that the municipality's or multimunicipal region's land use policies and

ordinances encourage the siting and construction of affordable housing within the

community and comply with the requirements of section 4358 pertaining to individual

mobile home and mobile home park siting and design requirements. The municipality or

multimunicipal region shall seek to achieve a level of at least 10% of new residential 19
https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/HP072501.asp 172



11/4/21, 3:44 PM HPQ725, LD 970, item 1, An Act To Encourage Policies Regarding Accessory Dwelling Units under Local Comprehensive Plans a...
development, based on a 5-year historical average of residential development in the
municipality or multimunicipal region, that meets the definition of affordable housing. A
municipality or multimunicipal region is encouraged to seek creative approaches to assist
in the development of affordable housing, including, but not limited to, cluster housing,
reduced minimum lot and frontage sizes, increased residential densities, use of
municipally owned land ard , establishment of policies that assess community needs and
environmental effects of municipal regulations, lessen the effect of excessive parking
requirements for buildings in downtowns and on main streets and provide for alternative
approaches for compliance relating to the reuse of upper floors of buildings in downtowns
and on main streets and establishment of policies that provide for accessory dwelling
units;

Sec. 7. 30-A MRSA §4326, sub-§3-A, qJ, as amended by PL 2015, c. 349, §5, is
further amended to read:

J. Develop management goals for great ponds pertaining to the type of shorclinc charactcr,

intensity of surface water use, protection of resources of state significance and type of

public access appropriate for the intensity of use of great ponds within the municipality's
or multimunicipal region's jurisdiction; and

Sec. 8. 30-A MRSA §4326, sub-§3-A, YK, as enacted by PL 20135, c. 349, §6, is
amended to read:

K. Encourage policies that assess community needs and environmental effects of
municipal regulations, lessen the effect of excessive parking requirements for buildings in
downtowns and on main streets and provide for alternative approaches for compliance
relating to the reuse of upper floors of buildings in downtowns and on main streets - ;_and

Sec. 9. 30-A MRSA §4326, sub-§3-A, gL is enacted to read:

L. Establish policies that provide for accessory dwelling units.

SUMMARY

This bill directs municipalities to develop policies in the comprehensive planning process
that provide for accessory dwelling units, which are dwelling units located within a detached
single-family dwelling unit.

Office of Legislative Information voice: (207) 287-1692
100 State House Station fax: (207) 287-1580
Augusta, ME 04333 tty: (207) 287-6826
Word Viewer for Windows Disclaimer

https://legislature.maine.gov/legis/bills/bills_129th/billtexts/HP072501.asp 2/2



11/2/21, 8:13 AM Maine Tiny Home Laws — Tiny Homes of Maine

—

N

Home Floor Plans FAQ Gallery

Blog About 3
i A ]- ® ™
Maine Tiny Home Laws Finance TINYﬁ:;tl»g“MES f

Contact
=8 l =
OF MAINE

T~

Passed On March 18, 2020

Background:

The passage of LD 1981 'An Act Regarding the Regulation of Tiny Homes’ came about because the
Secretary of State's Office thought the current statute should be updated to include the regulation of Tiny
Homes (this page is referring to tiny homes on wheels only).

There was a lot of effort put forth between the Tiny Home industry and the Secretary of State's Office to
come to an agreement on the following language for LD 1981,

Sec. 1. 29-A MRSA §101, sub-§80-C is enacted to read:

80-C. Tiny home. "Tiny home" means a living space permanently constructed on a frame or
chassis and designed for use as permanent living quarters that:

A. Complies with American National Standards Institute (ANSI) standard A119.5 on plumbing,
propane, fire and life safety and construction or National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standard
1192 on plumbing, propane and fire and life safety for recreational vehicles;

B. Does not exceed 400 square feet in size;
C. Does not exceed any dimension allowed for operation on a public way under this Title; and
D. Is a vehicle without motive power.

You can view the full detail of LD 1981 here and read the testimonies given during the public hearing here.

=

https://tinyhomesofmaine.com/maine-tiny-home-laws 1/6



11/2/21, 8:13 AM Maine Tiny Home Laws — Tiny Homes of Maine
Moving forward:

Any Maine town can opt to allow placement of a Tiny Home on a piece of property as a primary residence
or accessory dwelling by citing the definition of ‘Tiny Home' in title 29-A. Maine, being a home rule state,
gives towns the authority to ailow Tiny Homes. If the town's interpretation of the use of a Tiny Home
conflicts with the current zoning rules or land use regulations, then the rules can be updated to include Tiny
Homes and their permitted uses.

The following guidance comes from the Office of the State Fire Marshal and the Office of the Attorney
General as of Friday April 10, 2020.

The regulation of “tiny homes,” as defined in 29-A, is to be the exclusive purview of the Secretary of
State through the statutes of Title 29-A. As such, municipal code enforcement officers do not play
arole in inspecting “tiny homes.” |t is safe to assume that any living space that is issued a tiny
home title has been determined by the Secretary of State to meet the statutory definition of a tiny
home and is the exclusive jurisdiction of the Secretary of State, not subject to inspection by
municipal code enforcement officers.

To simplify, if a tiny home has a title from the Secretary of States Office it is not under the
jurisdiction of a local code official except for zoning. The title is going to read tiny home and it
would have to meet NFPA 1192 or ANSI A119.5 (recreational vehicle standards). This will be
determined by the Secretary of State and will not require an inspection by a local building
official. If the tiny home is built on site or does not have a title issued by the Secretary of State it

would fall under typical building code jurisdiction.
Approaching your town:

In the past, municipalities struggled with fitting Tiny Homes into the existing building code inspection and
compliance process. Now they don't have to (per the guidance above). Even though we do build our units
to both RV standards and IRC Appendix Q building codes there isn't a process that exists to certify Tiny
Homes for both.

The town of Chelsea, Maine made the following simple zoning update to allow Tiny Homes:

Tiny homes on wheels shall be classified as a recreational vehicle and shall meet all standards
applicable to recreational vehicles. If the tiny home is occupied for more than 6 months, it shall be
classified as a permanent dwelling and shall comply with the lot and frontage requirements
applicable to a residential dwelling unit.

Your town can choose how they want to include Tiny Homes in their zoning rules, but you should not have
to worry about building code enforcement for “state certified” Tiny Homes.

Financing Tiny Homes:

The State of Maine will issue a title for Tiny Homes that meet the definition in Title 29-A. Typically a title is a
requirement from your bank to qualify for financing. You can ask for an RV loan for Tiny Homes.

sl

https://tinyhomesofmaine.cam/maine-tiny-home-laws 2/6



11/2/21, 8:13 AM Maine Tiny Home Laws — Tiny Homes of Maine
We hope you found this information useful and we will continue to try to remove the barriers to make tiny living
easier for you:)

IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL OR A MUNICIPALITY WANTING TO LEARN MORE OR HAVE ADDITIONAL
QUESTIONS, PLEASE SCHEDULE A CALL USING THIS LINK.

LD 1530

https://tinyhomesofmaine.com/maine-tiny-home-laws

23

3/6



11/2/21, 8:13 AM Maine Tiny Home Laws — Tiny Homes of Maine

Passed On April, 19 2021

Background:

This bill establishes standards for municipalities to follow regarding tiny homes, which are structures no
larger than 400 square feet constructed on a frame or chassis and designed for use as permanent living
quarters. The bill allows municipalities to set rules for tiny homes that are less restrictive than state law,
allows tiny homes on undeveloped and developed housing lots, allows municipal inspection of certain
features of tiny homes and provides for tiny homes to be assessed for property tax purposes after 180 days
in certain circumstances.

An Act To Allow People To Live in Tiny Homes as a Primary or Accessory Dwelling
Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 30-A MRSA 84301, sub-814-D is enacted to read:

14-D. Tiny home. "Tiny home" has the same meaning_ as in Title 29-A,_section 101, subsection 80-C.
Sec. 2. 30-A MRSA §4363 is enacted to read;

84363. Tiny homes

1. Tiny homes. Regulation of tiny homes is governed by this section. This section does not prohibit
municipalities from establishing_controls on tiny homes that are less restrictive than are permitted by this section.

2. Location of tiny homes. A municipality shall allow a tiny home to be placed or erected as a primary structure

in a number of locations on an undeveloped house lot where a single-family dwelling_is allowed or as a primary or

accessory structure on property that already contains a structure. No more than one tiny home may be placed on
a lot uniess the combined square footage of multiple tiny homes does not exceed 400 square feet. A municipality

may reduce the setback requirements for a tiny home from those required for a single-family home.

3. Municipal inspection. A tiny home may be placed on a property for 180 days without an inspection under this
subsection. A tiny home may be used as a dwelling. A tiny home may be but is not required to be connected to a

utility, including_an electric service, a water service or, if the tiny home is connected to water service, a wastewater
sewer or septic system of an adjoining_structure. A municipality may inspect the following_for a tiny home:

A. That the tiny home meets the requirements of Title 29-A, section 101, subsection 80-C;

B. That the tiny home is placed on a stable surface, ground or footing;

C. Any utility connection to the tiny home: and

D. If atiny home is connected to a water service, all rules and requirements relating to wastewater.

4. Municipal design criteria. A municipality may establish design criteria for tiny homes, including a pitched,
shingled roof and exterior siding or other exterior features that are residential in appearance, unless:

A. The criteria have the effect of circumventing_the purposes of this section; and

https:/ftinyhomesofmaine.com/maine-tiny-home-laws 4/6



111221, 8:13 AM Maine Tiny Home Laws — Tiny Homes of Maine
B. The criteria are used to prevent the relocation of a tiny home that is legally sited as of January 1, 2021,

5. Property tax. A municipality may assess for and collect the tax under Title 36. Part 2 for a tiny home that is:

A. Affixed to the property, including_by way of a utility connection:

B. In a state of completeness or permanency; and

C. Located on the property for more than 180 days.

If a tiny home has been removed from a property, it is the responsibility of the property owner to inform the
municipality for purposes of reassessment of the tax under this subsection.

Codes and Zoning

This page is a resource for navigating codes and zoning as it pertains to Tiny Homes in the State of Maine.

There are 3 categories for Tiny Homes (all under 400 square feet).
We are only building Tiny Homes on Wheels at this time.

+ Site built Tiny Homes - typical stick built home constructed on site which follow existing regulations for
building inspections, permits and zoning rules.

* Tiny Homes not on wheels - a completed tiny home built off site and transported to the site to be installed
permanently. Typically these structures have to follow the same rules as above if it's being used as a
habitable space. Currently most towns will not accept tiny homes built and inspected in other towns, but we
are working on this so stay tuned:)

* Tiny Homes on wheels - (aka THOWSs or Moveable Tiny Home) LD1981 was passed on 3/18/2020 which
defines a “state certified” Tiny Home (on wheels) as a vehicle that needs to follow either RV or Park Model
RV standards. Typical building inspection and permits do not apply here.

* State certified THOWSs should not be an issue with building codes, but there are still hurdles with local

zoning ordinances.

* All Maine towns are required to follow the Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC) for habitable
dwellings. In January 2018 the state adopted the IRC Appendix Q for site built Tiny Homes. More info
found on the State’s website. The Tiny Home appendix is Chapter 5 page 7. This only applies to
permanent Tiny Homes.

* Maine is a Home Rule state meaning each municipality has local authority to allow THOWS if they want to.

* We have been advocating for all Tiny Homes since 2015. We've met with several state building officials,
local municipalities and land use attorneys to help towns establish a process for tiny homes. As of 4/2/2020 5

https://tinyhomesofmaine.com/maine-tiny-home-laws 5/6



11/2/21, 8:13 AM Maine Tiny Home Laws — Tiny Homes of Maine
only Chelsea, Maine has updated their ordinance to allow THOWSs.

« Our THOWs typically come with Nature's Head composting toilets (no water used) which are allowed, but
the grey water from your sinks and showers have to go somewhere. If you have a pressurized water
system (aka running water) you'll need to cannect to public or private sewer. There is the option for
holding tanks, but you'd have to get them filled and emptied frequently for full time living.

« Maine does have rules for draining grey water into the ground, but they are old and conflict with state
plumbing codes. Subsurface Waste Water Rules.

» Now that there is a definition of ‘Tiny Home' in Title 29A of Maine Law it should be easier for towns to
update their zoning ordinances to allow them. ASK YOUR TOWN TO DO THIS!

« If you are speaking with someone at your town office that is not knowledgeable about THOWS you can
have them contact us for answers:)

« Per LD1981 state certificd THOWSs are issued a state certificate of title which is needed for financial
institutions. If you are looking to finance the purchase of a THOW, ask your bank or credit union about an
RV loan for our Tiny Homes.

Houlton, ME 04730
(207)-619-4108
Open by appointment only

Ao

https:/ltinyhomesofmaine.com/maine-tiny-home-laws 6/6



DRAFT Home Occupation Regulations Code Amendment

(New) Section 13-207 Conditional Uses

1. Before authorizing any conditional use, the PJanning Bpard shall make written findings that the '

proposed use is in compliance with the specific requirements governing individual conditional use,

and the applicant has demonstrated that the proposed use meets the following standards:

A. The proposed use will not result in significant hazards or adverse impacts to pedestrian or
vehicular traffic, on-site or off-site.

B. The proposed use will not create or increase any fire hazard.

The proposed use will provide adequate off-street parking and loading areas.

D. The proposed use will not cause water pollution, sedimentation, erosion, or contamination of
any water supply. ;

E. The proposed use will not create unhealthy, conditions because of smoke, dust or other airborne ;
contaminants.

F. The proposed use will not create nuisances to neighboring properties because of odors, fumes,

9]

neighboring properties.
G. The proposed use will provide adequate waste disposal systems for all solid and liquid wastes :
generated by the use.

I 'i'h'e h'ré-;:;OSed use 'w'ill Qe c'&ml;:)'aitit-:i-e with éxiiting uses in the neighbor'hé.c'vd, 'w'ith respect to
hours of operation. _
1. gpecial screening or buffering will be provided s necessary to visually obstruct the subject

property from abutting uses or to ensure the continued enjoyment of abutting uses.
K. The groposed use will comply with applicable grading, drainage and other development

Such list of conditions shall be attached to any permits associated with the applicant’s proposed use
or operations.

incidental to and compatible with the primarily residential use of the property and surrounding
residential uses. A home occupation shall not be construed to mean an employee working in

his/her home in the service of an emplover, whose principal place of business is licensed at another
location.

1 value of adjacent properties.

&) [_Commented [DB3]: This is very simitar to F — can they be
) .‘Lcombined?

e

{. Deleted: p
{_ Deleted: b
( Deleted: reasonable means to

Deleted: ful

Deleted: hours of operation,

A AN R A

Deleted: The proposed use will not adversely affect the

|
¥ B

|
S

e S i

Commented [DM4R3): Hours of operation is not
necessarily a nuisance element. | believe having a separate
| hours provision is appropriate. |

(

Deleted: the generation of noise and

Deleted: The applicant's proposal must include any
special

: ] Deleted: applicant's proposal must adequately provide

| for

| Deleted: through and for preservation of existing
topography within its location, particularly in minimizing

| any significant change in grade, cut, fill, or paving

| intended...

| Commented [DB7]: These are not really standards for the |
| use, but rather requirements of the application/plan

| Commented [DMB8R7]: Reworded for consistency with
'_ other standards.

Deleted: <#>The applicant must be found to have
adequate financial and technical capacity to satisfy the
criteria in this section and to develop and thereafter
maintain the proposed project or use in accordance with
all applicable requirements.

Deleted: <#>1 J
|
J

Deleted: <#>reasonably

| Commented [DM9]: Change already addressed with
| Administrative Amendments

| Deleted: Home Occupation: An occupation or profession
which is customarily conducted on or in a residential
structure or property and which is 1} clearly incidental to

| and compatible with the residential use of the property and

l surrounding residential uses; and 2) which employs ng T]

| Commented [DM10]: Change already addressed wxfﬁ]
{Deleted: which J

. i Deleted: customarily

’ [ Deleted: a

[ Deleted: permanently

f Deleted: for financial gain J

Sl



(Rewritten as follows) Section 13-700.13 - Home Occupations.

1. Purpose. The purposes of this section are to:

are compatible with the neighborhoods in which they are located.
B. Provide an opportunity for a Jiome Occupation to engage in the business of day care and other
group activities and encourage this type of Hame Occupation to draw clients/customers from

their immediate neighborhood,|

2 a I
appropriate commercial zones,|

D. Safeguard peace, quiet, and domestic tranquility within all residential neighborhoéd_s. Protect

and those imposed under the authority of the Planning Board in accordance with this ordinance.

3. Categories of Home Occupation Licenses. Home occupation businesses are classified as Category |,
Permitted Home Occupation, or Category |l, Conditional Use Home Occupation. A Category |
Permitted Home Occupation requires review and approval by the Code Enforcement Officer. A

5. Home Occupation Standards. All Home Occupations shall comply with the following standards at all

times:

bona fide resident of the home. If the applicant for a Home Occupation license rents or leases

the property wherein the Home Occupation is intended to be conducted, the applicant must

provide a letter of acknowlédgment and consent from the property owner as an attachment to

the application for 2 Home Occupation permit.

B. Accessory Use on the Property.

1. For residential purposes, the Home Occupation shalt be clearly secondary and incidental to

with the sales, service, or production of goods, unless specifically stored within trailers or

C. [Guide certain business activities ghat are not compatible with neighborhoods to other, morg "

prie 1Y

L here? Recommend delete.

/| Deleted:

| Deleted: home occupation
[ Deleted: home
| Deleted: occupation |

| Deleted: child
| Deleted: child

{ Deleted: home occupation

-
! Commented [DB11]: Not relevant |

' Commented [DM12R11]: When a home occupation
| draws clients from the immediate neighborhood, this limits

", | external impacts into the neighborhood and makes the

| business more compatible with its surroundings,

e =

highlighted

| Commented [DB13]: Why is this specific use

" | Commented [DM14R13]: With new definitions the more
_ appropriate use would be Day Care rather than Child Care.
1 ._i Enabling
I Deleted: which

— '

'a ]
. | Commented [DB15]: This section really doesn‘t do this |

Recommend delete. |

| Commented [DM16R15]: | disagree. Having these
standards makes it clear what types of uses are perml‘ __[3]]

Deleted: of business uses being conducted in resid{ 14]:1

Deleted: enforce and

Deleted: home occupation |

Deleted: if violations of the ordinances occur. _I

Deleted: home
-Del-e-tlet;; occupations
[__Dc;lete_d: of

f Deleted:

I Deleted: -based business operations
>
|
A

License

Deleted: annually

Community Development offices

| Deleted: home occupation |

Deleted: home occupation

\

|

\ -

( Deleted: and carried on only by |
| Deleted: home occupation

> . Ed it A

Deleted: home occupation

Deleted: home occupation

1

| Deleted: home occupation
| Deleted: home occupation
I -

Deleted: home occupation



| Deleted: home occupation I

e N P —

{ Commented [DB17]: This contradicts what is stated |
| previously about no yard space, )

tEm s m e oo e e

| Commented [DB18}: Missing section “C” |

————

| Commented [DB19]: This is not consistent with previous |

wording, where it has been specified as residents oniy. | !
think we should consider keeping the current restriction of

| residents/family members anly, unless there is a compelling |

street parking. This provision excludes stops made by delivery vehicles. Customers or Clients |feasonitolexpandithe criteria RS B8 el Se)
may utilize on-street parking along the home frontage in accordance with street parking i | Commented [DM20R19]: This raises two questions:
1) How important is facilitating the incubation of

standards. 0
a businesses?

o= 1

2. Business Vehicles exceeding a GVW of 8,000 Ibs, trailers, and related equipment must be [ Deleted: D

stored to the side or rear of the home. a0 Deleted: home occupation )

3. No parking is permitted on landscaped areas of the property, "| Deleted: E
1 Deleted: which

, —

F. Signage. A single sign is permitted, provided such sign is non-illuminated and does not exceed

two square feet. Deleted: home O_Ccupatlzn

Deleted: , including those of the applicantand [ 1g] ]

. '[ Deleted: There shall be complete conformity ]
| Deleted: home occupation
H. Deleted: No process can be used which is hazardo{?i—}]—]

Deleted: home occupation

Deleted: home occupation

vibrations, excessive traffic, or other nuisances, including interferences with radio and television ) ——
. . . Deleted: or i
reception, or any other adverse effects within the neighborhood. — —

{ ]
|

= [_Deleted:c ]
)

- [ Deleted: s
1

Deleted: home occupation

[ Deleted: finds that they are unable to T
{ Deleted: q _]
<
<

(section 7 below), o _ o i Deleted: possible

A.  Hours. No visitors in conjunction with the Home Occupation (clients, patrons, employees, Deleted: hame occupation

volunteers, students, pupils, etc.) shall be permitted between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 { Deleted: before submitting application for _[_[BJ]
a.m. | Deleted: home occupation |
. 2 . i . [ Deleted: 1r
B. Traffic. Vehicular traffic from businessyelated visitors and customers shall not exceed that - —
which normally and reasonably occurs for a home in the neighborhood. |__Deleted: home occupation _
[ Deleted:
( Deleted: to ]
[ Deleted: ]
s S i
|  Deleted: J

a9



2. Child day care and other child group activities shall not exceed sixteen (16) customer drop-

Occupation shall be limited to vehicles with a gross vehicle weight rating (GVYWR) of 23,000
pounds or less.

C. |Maximum Floor Space. No more than 50 percent of the dwelling unit,shall be utilized for
the Home Occupation. No businesses can operate outside of the primary residential structure,

unless otherwise approved by the Planning Board for outside activities.{

Y

accordance with State of Maine licensing requirements.

Elderly Day Care. Conduct of Elderly Day Care businesses shall not exceed the care of two elderly
persons that are 60 years of age or older for more than 12 hours per day. Any Elderly Day Care | %
that exceeds two individuals 60 years of age or older, or more than 12 hours per day of Ik
operation s considered a Category Il Home Occupation, which shall be reviewed and approved

by the Planning Board.

standards in section 5 above but is unable to comply with all of the Category | qualifications
established in section 6, the proposed business activities must be reviewed by the Planning Board
and granted a conditional use permit before pursuing a Home Occupation Permit. In addition,
any application proposing two or more Home Occupation licenses, and : 2d witk ne
dwelling unit, shall be reviewed by the Planning Board, to ensure that the cumulative impacts of the
pronnsedj_—!c_}_me Occupations comply with city ordinances. _]’he following standards or business

1. All Category Il Home Occupation uses shall be conducted only from property with a single- |
family dwelling. bR
[ ‘(.'
2. Proposed uses may be determined to be appropriate as Home Occupations only if they are k
Judged to be compatible with residential neighborhoods by the Planning Board conditional _ \
use review
T e
3. A maximum of 12 business-related visitors per day may be allowed, except as provided for \

in section B. “Child Day Care” and C. "Other Group Child Activities.”

B. Child Day Care. The following items indicate maximum limits that may be granted by the

1. A maximum of 16 children is permitted at any one time.

2. A maximum of 18 children is permitted per day.

U

{ Deleted: This type of home occupation

%1 be addressed.

o [ Deleted: and

¥

[’_ Deleted:

| Deleted: home occupation

|
J

Deleted: 25

Deleted: the total main floor area or upper living levels |
of ...he dwelling unit, nor, in the alternative, more than 50
percent of the total floor area of any basement of

the home unit...shall be utilized for the home mcu@

|
|
\

1 Commented [DB23]: This criteria Is unclear and should

| be reworded. Don’t we have other rules that limit

| customers to the main level? What if the business uses

l both some living area and some basement area? Is this

| intended to replace the 50% total floor area of the principle
LEwelllng structure?

—

A

[ Moved (insertion) {1]

J

| Commented [DB24]: “at any one time” and “per day” are
| different. Current wording would limit business to conduct
Ljust one % hour dance lesson with 8 students per day.

| Commented [DM25R24]: True, as a Category | Home

| Oce. that the CEO can approve. If they want more then they
need Planning Board approvai as Category Il. If each child
came in a different care, there could be traffic concernsto |

|

Deleted: associated with child day care or other child 1
group activities (e.g., dance schools, preschool, music

classes, etc.)

Moved up [11: (e.g., dance schools, preschool, music
classes, etc.)

|
|
)
Deleted: eight |

Deleted: . This number shall include the licensee's own

1 children, if they are under six years of age and are{ _ 10] 1

Deleted: d..y Cc..re businesses shall not exceed [ 111} I

Deleted: home occupation

1

Deleted: home occupation...ome Occupation is abl[ (1 2]_J
—_—e — \

Deleted: for

. = - - j
Deleted: Commission ...0ard at the time of its rev{ 113] |

Deleted
Deleted

Deleted
Deleted

Deleted

(
|_v

{

: home occupation

[
(
].
[
[

: only |

[..1141]

:U..sesare

: shall

: licensable

Deleted: home occupation

: determined ...udged to be compatible1

Deleted

| Deleted: at one time



Deleted: home occupation

| - &

conducted. T { Deleted: 1

[ Deleted: J

[ 4. A maximum of 24 vehicular stops per day for child drop-off or pick;up is permitted. & t Deleted: which |

Commented [DB28): How are we going to monitor and
enforce these restrictions? |

children/students (e.g., dance schools, preschools, music classes, other care or instruction for " | Commented [DM29R28]: Generally these uses self-

children) at any one time other than child day care: . police or neighbor police, If someone has to get a Cat il |
approval and all the surrounding neighbars were noticed of |

the public hearing, there will be heightened scrutiny
accurring,

| the Planning Board for other child group activities that are expected to generate or exceed eight i

1. IA maximum of 12 students/children per session and a maximum of 24 students/children per
day shall be permitted, so longas|

Deleted: Community Development Director

a. A Traffic Plan that has been reviewed and approved by the Code Enforcement Officer, - { Deleted: i

which includes acceptable traffic flow, dropspff, and turn-around areas. [ Deleted: c. Al sessions combined shall not generate
. . . : t icular st :

b. A maximum of four sessions per day may be permitted. ;nore han 26 vehicular stops per day.{

k. The total number of students/children shall include the licensee’s and any employees' [ Deleted: home occupation = a
children if they are under six years of age and are under the care of the licensee at the [ Deleted: e }
time the Home Occupation is conducted. [ Formatted: Highiight ]

4. No child group activities falling under a Category Il Home Occupation may be 7| Deleted: home occupation )
established within 300 feet of another group child activity, Category I Home { Deleted: home occupation |
Otcupation use, as measured from property line to property Iines T T ‘ Commented [DB32]: | understand the rationale here, but |

. i y %, . | there’sa question of fairness. It doesn’t quite sit righ _ ha-'

D. Business Not Conducted Within a Home. For any Home Occupation that proposes or conducts e )
business activities within an outbuilding, accessory building, attached or detached garage, thehe . .+  Commented [DM33R32]: You raise 3 valld concer|  [17] |
following guidelines shall be used to determine the maximum impacts permitted: | Formatted: Highlight J

1 - g - Ly 3 Deleted: of another group child activity, Categ i

1. INo more than a maximum of 200 square feet, or, in the alternative, no more than 50 [ £ 18] }
percent of the total floor space (whichever is the greater) of any accessory structure or A [ peleted:i /
attached or detached garage may be used for a flome Occupation, unless there are specific ( Deleted: home occupation

exceptions granted by the Planning Board based on proximily of the structure to { Deleted: which

ngighbaoring dwellings, size of the property, and overall anticipated impacts of the use; Deleted: . T

]
)
|
|

Deleted: home occupation

(
\
777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1 Co_mr_n_e!l_t_ed [DBSﬂi’C:Jrrenil!lt’s-}EJO“’_A 9f_access [1;ﬂ

. | Commented [DM35R34]: How big can an accessi:]'zo'"]
] impair the use and value of residentiallyzoned areas for residential purposes and are, therefore, 1 Deleted: 2. Any accessory structure used for —u".?-‘l].]

hibited: b ) e —— it
prohibite . | Commented [DM37): DB: Make all use of axplosei _ (2] b

A. Mortuary, crematorium, columbarium, or mausoleum. . E Deleted: .1 .[23] [
B.  Animal hospital or veterinary service, except in the R-3 zone with a Category o [— Deleted: _J
I Home Occupation ger n e o Deleted:: )
. . | Deleted:s |

C. Clinic, dental office, medical office, chiropractic office, or hospital, except in the R-3 zone with a 4
. . . [ Deleted: Category II |

Category il Home Qccupation permit, - . _

[ Deleted: P |

2l



. Punkyard, auto wrecking yard, or salvage yard within the urban compact area. Any Junkyard,
auto wrecking vard, or salvage yard outside of the urban compact aréa must comply with
separate local and state licensing procedures| o . commented [DB38]: Not even in R-3? ]

Commented [DM39R38): Junkyard, auto wrecking yard, |

""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" | or salvage yards are parrnitted in the R-3 as a primary use of |

| a property. Not allowing them as a home acsupation |
doesn’t preclude their existence in the R-3, it just reduces
the potential of having one pop up next te neighborin a
more residential area of the R-3. This strikes more at the

Occupations desiring to conduct these lypes of activities in the R-3 zone may be_p_el_rm_tkgq 777777 urban center of the city.
{ Deleted: s

subject to full Site Plan review by the Planning Board and must be at least 300 feet from any AN
neighboring dwelling. 5

Deleted: s

Deleted: ies

Use of specified chemicals, pesticides and flammable/combustible materials, and including any

other process or business where current adopted Building and Fire Codes would require an [_Deeted: p

herein the pumber of vehicular stops or visits "_.[_Commented [DBAO]; Not even in R-37

=== o5 (52 =5 55 SEEis

' | Commented [DM41R40]: Again, this use Is permitted In
the R-3 as a primary use of a property. Just reduces impacts

| in more residential area of the R-3. Recall the VanBuren

| Road problems?

Bed and breakfast facilities. (regulated under separate rules — see Section 13-700

Deleted: G. Auto body repair or motor vehicle repair.q
: Deleted: 1 |
I Deleted: N j

Commented [DB44]: See previous comment on 24 vs 48
+'| stops |

' Commented [DM45R43): See above response.
[ Deleted: that would




Harng —» Professions and Occupaticns

Professions and Occupations

Show 100 v entries Search:
Board, Profession or Occupation Contact Phone F
! p Number Nut
Accountants peeountancy, board@maine.gov 207-624- 207-
(/nfr/professionallicensinglnrofessions/accountansy) (matlioaccountancyboardinmaine.gov) 8672 8637
Acupunelurists comphealth lis@maine.gov (mailtocompheatinlng@maine.goy) 207-624- 207-
(Infriprofgssionallicensingfrofessionstheard.of- 8620 8637
complementary-health-care-providers)
Alcotiol and Drug Lounselors aleohaldryg board@maine.gov 207-624-  207-
(piprofessionalicensing/nrofessinnsiade) (mailte:alcoheldrug hoard@maine, gov) 8674 8637
American Sign Language Interprelers interprelers@maine . gov (maillg.intorpretecs@maine, gov) 207-624- 207-
(infrinrofossignallicensingimrolessionsfamedcan-sign- 8624 8637
language-interprelers)
Anntaisal Management Companies (AMC) estateapprbhoncd@maine gov 207-624-  207-
{Infriprotessionalicensing/professionsboard-roal-esiate- (mailte:rdestateapprhoardémaine.goy) 8522 8637
apnraisers)
Arghitects ({pfrfprofessionalliceusing/professionsfboard-of: — architegls board@maine.gov. (maillo:architects board@maine.gov)  207-624-  207-
licensure-architects-landscape-archilecls-inlarior- 8522 8637
designers)
Athletic Trainers afhlelic riners@maine.gov. (mailie:athletic lrainprs@maine.gov) 207-624-  207-
{fpfriprotessionallicensing/prolessions/alivelic:trainers. 8624 8637
RrQoram)
Auclioneers (pftprefessionallicensing/piofessionsiboard-  auctionsers.board@imaine,qoy 207-624-  207-
ligansing-auctiongers) {maillg:augionsers.board@maine.gov) 8521 8637
Audiolagists (/pft/professionalliceasing/prolessionsiboard-  shaudhag,board@m: v (maillgsstnaudhad homd@maine.goy)  207-624-  207-
speech-audiology-heating) 8624 8637
Barhers (fofiprolessionallicensing/professionstharbering:  bdrborcosm lic@maine.gov (malllo:batbercosovlic@maing gov) 207-624-  207-
sasmelology:-licensing) 8579 8637
Boiler Inspeclors bollers hoard@maine.gov (maifig:hoilers.heard @maine.gey) 207-624-  207-
{Upfrinrofessionallicensing/rolessions/boiler-pressure- 8606 8637
vessal-safety-program)
Baiter.Qperators bollers.hoard@maine.gov (thailto:boilers.beard@maine.goy) 207-624-  207-
(lolrlprofessionallicansingfrelessionshoier -pressurs. 8606 8637
vessel-salaly-program)
Charitable Solictations charilable sol@maine,gov (malllgsharitable sol@maine.gov) 207-624-  207-
(ipleprofessionallicensingmrafessionsicharitable- 8624 8637
soliciialions-acl )
Chiropraglors icd@maine.gov. (mailto:chiroprastic lef@maine.gov) 207-624-  207-
(nfrinrofessionallicensing/miofessions/chiropractic. 8620 8637
licensure)
Complementary Health Carg Providars comphealth lic@@maine.goy (maillg;compheallh. icfmaine.gov) 207-624-  207-
(piprofessicnallicensinglprofessions/hoars-ol- 8620 8637
complementary-heallh-care-providees)
Casmetologists harbercasm licfdmaine gov 207-624-  207-
{pirfprofessionalicensing/urofessions/arbering- (maitlobarbercusm, pregram@maing.gov) 8579 8637
cosmelology-licensing)
Coungelors (/pfi/profess censinglprofasanshoard:  gounselboard@imaing. gov (maill:counsel.board @maine.gov) 207-624-  207-
of-counseling-professionals-licensurg 8674 8637
Qental Hygiemsts (https e maine govfdental) denlal board@maine,gov (iaito:dental.board@maine.gov) 207-287-  207-
. 3333 B14C



Board, Profession or Qccupation

Contact

Dentists (hitps deway ragine govidentalf)

Upfifirolgssionpllicensing/prolossions/hoard-hicensing:
digiglic-practice)

Digntians (/nfr/professionallicensing/prolessions/hoari-
ligensing distalic-pracice)

Dogr-tu-Ooor Home Repair Sollers
(infrlprotessionallicenging/prolessunsiloorto-toor-nome
repalt-sallors)

Eleclriciang )
{(idprofessionallicansingfralessionsieiednnians

Glevatar ingpeetars i |
A GG

safety-proaram)

Foresters (ft/professionallicensinglnrofessions/hoard-
liegnsure-lorestors)

Euneral Praclitioners
(fpfrlpeofesslonallicensing/prolgssionsihoard-funeral:
services)

Geologists {(/pirinrolgssionzllizensing/professionsiboard-
ligeraure-geologistssail-seianlists)

Hearing Aid Dealers and Fillers
(ipf/nrofessionallicensmalunigssians/board-speech-

audiolagy-hearing)

Insurance Licensees
(rttps:/fwww, maine.qov/pfrfinsurance/requlated/mdex 1tnil)

_lmc-n wir Dusicners ‘
{infriprolessionallivensinomolessions/bosd-ul-heensure-
architeels-landseapg-architecls-interior-designers)

Land Soevayors ‘
{nfuprofessionallicensinglorofessonsiboard icensure.
ralgssional-land-survayors)

Landdscape Archilects
((pidprotessionallicensing/prolessigng/board-of-icensuse-
archilecls-lnndscape-architesis-anlenor-designers)

Manufauiured Hausing Profussionals
((pfrtprelessionallicensinglolessionsimanulaciuced:
housing-board)

Massage Therapists
((pfrhaolassionalicemnginrofessionsimassngesherspy-
ligonsurg)

Naturopathic Doglors
(ipfriprafessionaliicensing/prolessionsibond-of-
complementary-huallb-core:providyers)

Nurse Praglitiongrs
{hitps:Meww.maing goylhoardelnursiug/

Nurses_(hitps:iwww.nzame. gowhoardainursing?)

Mursing Horne Adpunislegtors
{(pipeolessivnallivensingfurales sionsiouwsimg-hame-
adminsteators-licensing -boord)

Qugunaiivnat Thorapisle
(i molesstonallicensing/professnshopcd-gueunalional
therapy-practice)

Oceupaiionat Therapy AsSISEnIS
(Ipfriprotessionaliicensing/prolessions/honrd-oocupation:l-
therapy-prachicg)

Phone
Number

dentalboard@maine. gav (malle.dentl boardgimaine. gov)

diglboard@maine.goy (mailledelbrard@maine.gav)

diet hoard@dmaine.gov (maillodiet board@maine.gov)

glevluctanbioard@maine.gov (maillp:eleclician.boprdmaing.gov)

elevatorsaletylic@ oy (mailioslevalgrsalely.lic@maine.gov)

foresters. board@maine.gov {(malo leresters, boardt@maine.goy)

fuperalboard@maine.gov (maille ungral board @maine.qoy)

geoloaists.hoard@maine.gov (naille;geclogists.board@maine.qov)

sihaudhad hoard@maine.goy (mallte:sinaudhad board@maine. gov)

nsurance PER@maine, gov (inaillo:nsurange PEREIMaine goy)

arehitgCls.hoard@maing .gov (malto:aghilgals hoard@maing, gov)

prelandsurboard@malne.gav
{mailtosprotandsurhoard@m

archileets board@maine.gov (nailloarchitaclg beard@inaine.gov)

manuhoysing boardi@maine. gov
(Imailte.manuhousing boardidmaing gov)

massage.herapy@maing.gov
(mailemassage.hermny@maing.goy)

somphealinlic@maine. gov (maliecomphealth, ic@maine gov)

Board &f Mursing, (hitps /evwavmaine govioartdoliursmghoard.
nfomalian/staitcontactiwnl)

Bourd-of Nursing (hitps v imame, gov/hoardofuusinglbosrd:
informationdstall-contael himt)

nucsehng hoardemaing gov_(mailto: nursetim,boardger

oge boardi@maine. gov (mule.pse huardamaine.gov)

peebodnrdpmaing, goy (madte;nes.oarde

207-287-
3333

207-624-
8674

207-624-
8674
207-624-
8624

207-624-
8457

207-624-
8672

207-624-
8521
207-624-
8624
207-624-
8672
207-624-
8603
207-624-
8475
207-624-
8522

207-624-
8522

207-624-
8522

207-624-
8612

207-624-
8624

207-624-
8620

207-287-
1133

207-287-
1133

207-624-
8674

207-624-
8624

207-624-
8624

Nui

207-
814C

207-
8637
207-
8637
207-
8637
207-
8637
207-
8637
207-
8637
207-
8637
207~
8637
207«
8637
207~
859¢
207-
8637

207-
8637

207-
8637

207-
8637

207-
8637

207-
8637

207-
11489

207-
1142

207-
8637

207-
8637

207~
8637



; . Phone F
Board, Profession or Occupation Contact Number Nul
Qiland Solid Fue! Technicians fuel hoard@maing. gov (mailte.(vel board@maine. gov) 207-624-  207-
(Ipfr/professionallicensinginralesnonsimaine-fual-beard) 8627 8637
Qil Beatar. Ragigirations (Prepaid Plans) prepaidhenting, pir@maine gov 207-624-  207-
{https:/fanivemaing govipfilicensing/hho) {mailtoprenaidheating, pir@maine.aov) 8511 859¢
Optometusts (pleprofessionalicensing/professionsfmaine.  Board of Optomatry 207-624-  207-
stale-board-gplometry) (hitps./iwww.mang, gavipitprofessionallivensing/professons/mane. - 8691 8692
slate-board-optometrvfome/contact-us)
Eharmagy (plrdprofessionaliicensing/professtons/boart- pharmacy.lic@maing.goy.(mailto:nharmacy.ic@maing gov) 207-624-  207-
pharmagy) 8620 8637
Phaimacy_Technigiang phagnagylic@maine.gov (maillo:Rharmagy.lic 207-624-  207-
(pfrinrafessionallicensing/professions/hoard-planmagy) 8620 8637
Physical Therapists physicalthrpylic@maine.goy (maillo.physizallboy.lic@mane. gov) 207-624- 207~
8620 8637
Y
Physiciana (MD)_(hitps: ey, maine,govimd/) Board of Medicing (https:/nw.mame. govimdlabout/contact-us) 207-287-  207-
3601 659C
Physictans (Qsteopath) susan.e stroul@maing,gov (mailtesusan.esttout@dmaine.goy) 207-287-  207-
(hitps:iwww.maine, goviostenthomg) 2480 5811
Plumbers (pft/professionaliconsing/mralessions/mumbers:  plumbges hoard oy onidloplumbers.bioardé@maine. Gov) 207-624-  207-
sxamining-hoard) 8627 8637
Podiaists.(Ioh/nrofessionallicensing/protessions/board. podmer hoard@maine.gov (malllacnodmed.bogrd@mains.gov) 207-624- 207
ligensure-podiatne-medicing) 8674 8637
Professional Engine prolessional,enginegrs@maine.goy 207-287-  207-
(hilpsiivrn maing goy/urofessianalengneerss) (mailto:professional.engineers@mal 3236 323¢
FProfessiopal Solicitors chaatable soldimaine.gov (mailto:chaitable. solédmaing.goy) 207-624- 207-
(fpic/professionallicensing/professionsfclantahle - 8624 8637
solicitations-act)
Propape & Natural Gas Technicians 207-624-  207-
(/pfriprofessionalicensing/professionsinaing-fuel-board) 8627 8637
Psychologists 207-624- 207-
{piriprolassionalicensing/prolessionsibenrd-examiners: 8626 8637
paychologists)
Radiatagic Technolgyisis 207-624-  207-
{{pfriprofessionallicensing/professions/iradiologic- 8674 8637
tlachuglogy-hoard-examiness)
Reat Estate Appraisers tlestateappr.boardidmaine gov 207-624-  207-
(Infripeofassionallicensing/professions/board-raal-estale - (maitoulestateanirboard@maine. gov) 8522 8637
appraisers)
Real Eslate Comuission testate. com@maine.gov (mailte:flesiale com@maine.goy) 207-624-  207-
(tpfrinrofegsionpllicensing/rrofessionsiedl-estate: 8521 8637
conmission)
Respiratory, Care Praculioners respeare board@maine.goy. (maillrespeare ic@maine.gov) 207-624-  207-
((pfriprofessionallicensing/prolessions/hoard-respiralory- 8674 8637
caire-pracliliongrs)
Social Workers socwkrbonrd@maine.gov (mailto'socwke board@maine. gov) 207-624- 207-
{nfr/professionallicensingrofessions/state-board-soal 8623 8637
worker-licansure)
Soil Scientisls gaalogisls.hward@maine gov (mallo;geologisis hpard@maine.qov)  207-624-  207-
(nfrirrafessianallicensinglprolessionsiboard:licensure: 8672 8637
geolagisis-soil-scientisls)
Speach-Language Pathgologists shpaudhad board@maine.gov (maiilo slpaudhad board@maine.gov)  207-824-  207-
({pllprofessianaliicensinginrolessionsiboard-speeth- 8624 8637
audiology-hearing)
Stationary Steam Engineers boilers board@maine.gov (mailtg:boters.board@maine.gov) 207-624-  207-
' 8606 8637

(tpftfprofessionallicensing/professionsibolier-pressure-
vessel-salely-program)



Phone F

Board, Profession or Occupation Contact Number Nui
Tramway Inspectors elevatorsafolylic@maing.oov (malltoelevalorsalely lin@maine.gov)  207-624-  207-
({pfriprofessionallicensing/professions/aluvator-ramwiy: 8672 8637
safaty=program)
Transiant Sellecs _ ) lrans.sellers@maine, gov. (maho teans sellars@maine.doy) 207-624-  207-
{pleprofessionallicensing/nrolessions/regulalion-liansient: 8624 8637
aalas)
Velerinanans ((pifprolessionallicensingdprofessions/board-  yetmed lic@maine.gov (alle vetmed lgkimaing.gov) 207-624-  207-
velerinary-medicine), 8620 8637
Vetarinary Technicians yalned. iv@maine.goy (maitovetmed le@maine, gov) 207-624-  207-
{Ipfrfpcofessionalliconsma/professions/hourd-velerinary: 8620 8637
tigdicing)

Showing 1 to 86 of 66 entries Previous | 1 ] Next
Creuil infornation Gontact PER Agencies Affiliated Bourds
Rlaune g Brictine [NRHESS iy Danli

LNad ety

olarise Document Viewer




10148 CMILCh. 32, Clitlid Carg Facility Licensing Ruic Child Care Coners, Rursery Schooly, Small Clsld Care Facitines.,
Other Proaiams
SECTION 3,  FEES
Fees.

L. Alicensing fee must be submitted with each application for a license, as directed by the
Department.

2. Fees for licensing are non-refundable,

3. Fees for license application and rencwal will be established based on an analysis of the 7
Department’s costs for issuing the license. Fees will not exceed the cost of issuing licenses,

4.  Failure to submit a timely renewal application will result in the expiration of the license.
Fees for facilities serving 3-12 Children.
1. The application fee for a provisional or a temporary license is $120.00

2. The application fee for a full license or its biennial renewal is $24f).00.

Fees for facilities serving 13 or more Children.
1. The application fee for a provisional or a temporary license is $120.00.

2. The application fec for a full license or its bicnnial renewal is $240.00.

Fee for Nursery Schools The applicationfee for a provisional, temporary, renewal, or full license for a
Nursery School is $10.00.

18

1



L0118 CMR Ch, 32, Child Care Facility Tieensing Rule Child Care Centers, Nursery Seliools, sumall Chitd Cars Facilities,

Other Progrms

SECTION 7. STAFF-CHILD RATIOS, SUPERVISION, AND QUALIFICATIONS

A. Children under six weeks of age. No Child under six weeks of age, as verified by a bicth certificate or
immunization record may be cared for in a Child Care Facility.

B. Limitations on capacity.

1. Children of Child Care Staff Members must be counted in the appropriate age groups and in
determining staff-child ratios and capacity when in care at the Child Care Facility.

2. The number of Children allowed may be restricted by the Department when any of the following
circumstances are present:

a.

Space is limited or unusually configured;

b. A Child Care Staff Member has physical limitations that would impact the Child Care Staff

C. Staff-Child ratios.

1. The number of Children present must not exceed licensed capacity.

Member’s ability to safely care for, supervise or respond to the needs of Children in care.

2. The maximum number of Children to be assigned pet adult, excluding Staff Members with primary
responsibility for clerical, cooking, and maintenancé functions must be as follows:

Mixed ages

3 Children 2 - 5 yeats +
2 Children over § years,
or
8 Children 2 - 5 years +

| 2 Children over 5 years.

6 Children over 2 years.

a. Ratio requirements for Small Facilities serving 3-12 Children:
"""" CHILD AGES CHILD CARE STAFF MEMBER-CHILD RATIO
6 weeks - 2 years 1:4 2:8 3:12
-?years — 5 years 1:8 2:12 Not applicable
Over 5 years 1:12 Not applicable Not applicable
1 Staff: 2 Staff; 3 Staff;
3 Children under 2 years + 6 Children under 2 years + 12 Childten

(No more than 9 Children
may be under 2 years).

28




{0148 CMR Ch 32, Clild Cave Pacility Ticensing Role Child Care Centers, Nursery Schools, Smatl Chiid Cae Pailives,
Other Programs

b. Ratio requirements for Facilities serving 13 or more Children:

MAXIMUM GROUP SIZE

CHILD CARE STAFF MEMBER-

AGE CHILD RATIO

6 weeks - 1 year 1:4 8

_ 1:4 12
-1 .

_I-year 2 V5 years 15 10
2 Vo years - 3 V5 years o 1.7 - 21
1 ves : . 1:8 24
3 years - If_ndcr 5 yc?dls 110 20
5 ycars (School age) - 12 years N RHE R n/a

¢, Ratio requirements for Nursery School programs.

l MAXIMUM GROUP SIZE
U5

‘“‘ "~ CHILD CARE SYAFF MEMBER-CHILD
RATIO

i,

] I

L

3. In Child care programs serving 13 or more Children:

a. A single Child Care Staff Member may provide care in one classroom within the building for
six ot fewer Children, regardless of age, for a period of time not to exceed one hour at the
beginning and end of the posted hours of operation.

b. At least two Child Care Staff Members must be present in the Child Care Facility whenever
seven or more Children, regardless of age, are present.

c. The group size and the number of required Child Care Staff Members must be determined
based on the age of the youngest Child, when there is a combination of ages within a group.

d. Older Children may fill younger Children’s spaces, but younger Children may not fill older
Children’s spaces.

e. Special events occurring at the Facility location must provide supervision in accordance with
this rule. A Child attending a special event in the care of a parent or legal guardian will not be
included in staff-Child ratios. Special events occurring outside of typical hours and days of
opetation are not subject to this rule.

D. Supervision.
1" Children must be supervised at all times.

a. In Child Care Facilities serving 3-12 Children, Child Care Staff Members must have
knowledge of the activity and whereabouts of each Child in care.

i, Child Care Staff Members must be able to see or hear all Children at all times and be able
to provide prompt intervention when needed.

ii. Child Care Staff Members must be physically present outside when Children under the age
of eight outdoors.

29




The Caribou Waterworks was first established in 1889 as The Caribou Water Company, and in
1903 reformed as the Caribou, Water, Light and Power Company. In 1943 the power generation
assets were sold to Maine Public Service Company and the Waterworks was acquired by General
Waterworks Corporation of Philadelphia, Pa. In 1989 the Caribou Utilities District (CUD)
purchased the Caribou Waterworks Corporation, adding a water treatment and distribution
system to the District.

Water Systems

A new groundwater source and treatment plant was completed in 2006 to replace the old filter
plant built in 1941 whose source was the Aroostook River. The new facility provides higher
quality water which complies with more stringent water quality standards. The District now
produces drinking water from two gravel wells on the River Road in Caribou. Chemicals used in
the treatment process include sodium hypochlorite for disinfection, fluoride for dental health and
ortho-phosphate for corrosion control.

The water supply and distribution system include over 32 miles of water mains, serves over
1,600 customers and provides fire protection service through 150 hydrants. The District
typically produces around 182 million gallons of water annually, or about 500,000 gallons per
day. The system also maintains over 1.5 million gallons in 4 storage tanks. This storage allows
the water system to meet peak demand periods and maintain an adequate supply during
firefighting events. The wells and treatment plant are capable of providing over 1.5 million
gallons per day if required. As the facilities currently meet demand, including additional
capacity, no major expansions are planned.

Wastewater Systems

The Caribou Utilities District (CUD) was organized in 1945 to take over the assets of the
Caribou Sewer Company (1905) and to manage wastewater functions for the City of Caribou. In
1960, a primary treatment plant was constructed at 176 Limestone Street to treat wastewater
prior to discharge to the Aroostook River. Significant industrial loadings were added to the CUD
facilities from local potato processing plants. In order to provide an improved effluent quality,
The Charles D. Hatch Treatment Facility was constructed in 1983 near Grimes Mill on the
Aroostook River, 2.5 miles downriver from the primary plant. Three aerated lagoons totaling 40
million gallons were constructed along with disinfection facilities. Periodic improvements have
been added to improve treatment and effluent water quality. The treatment plant typically
handles about 600,000 gallons per day but can accommodate over 5 million gallons per day at
peak capacity. The plant is designed for more treatment capacity than currently used.

The District serves over 1,800 customers and maintains over 35 miles of sewer collection pipes
and over 700 manholes. Two main pumping stations and 11 smaller lift stations are part of the
collection and transport system. No significant sewer extensions are planned. All significant
facility expansions for water or wastewater will be done in conformance with the Comprehensive
Plan. As the facilities are currently adequate, including additional treatment capacity, no major
expansions are planned.



Fire/Ambulance Service- Caribou Fire and Ambulance Department (CFAD) provides fire suppression
services to the City of Caribou as well as the communities of Woodland, Connor Township, New Sweden
and provides ambulance service to these communities as well as Stockholm, Madawaska Lake, Caswell,
Limestone and Westmanland. The CFAD is a 15 member department with a full time working chief. The
department also consists of one administrative assistant. The City should focus on adding part time staff
as contracts increase to maintain positive cash flow and move the CFAD towards a net revenue
generating department with sufficient revenue to reduce taxation by the end of the planning

period. Continued growth in this area is possible and critical for the future of the community.



